KENTUCKY BOARD OF PHARMACY
via teleconference
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87644408207?pwd=a1BJWnR0VmNQanpEZ3ZqSWhJMHR3Zz09
Meeting ID: 876 4440 8207 Passcode: k30aFM
Dial by your location
+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago)
+1 646 558 8656 US (New York)
Meeting ID: 876 4440 8207 Passcode: 860334
Case Review Panel
August 24, 2021
9:00 a.m.
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•
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•
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•

I.

Call to Order

II.

Minutes – July 20, 2021 and August 3, 2021

III.

Cases:

20-0122 A, B, C, D and E
20-0231 A, B, C, D, E, F & G Revisit
21-0004 A and B
21-0009 A and B
21-0048 A and B
21-0056 A, B and C
21-0071 A, B and C
21-0075 A and B
21-0080
21-0084 A, B, C and D
21-0089 A, B, C, D, E, F & G
21-0091 A, B and C
21-0109 A, B, C, D, E and F
21-0110 A, B and C
21-0112 A, B and C Revisit

IV.

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

21-0120 A, B and C
21-0122 A, B, C and D
21-0124 A and B
21-0125 A, B and C
21-0126 A and B
21-0131 A, B, C and D
21-0134
21-0135 A, B and C
21-0137 A and B
21-0138 A and B
21-0141 A and B
21-0147 A, B, and C
21-0149 A, B and C
21-0152 A, B and C
21-0153 A and B

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

21-0154 A, B and C
21-0155 A, B, C and D
21-0157 A and B
21-0158 A and B
21-0160 A, B and C
21-0161 A, B, C, D, E, F & G
21-0162 A and B
21-0163 A and B
21-0166 A and B
21-0167
21-0169 A and B
21-0173
21-0174 A and B
21-0175 A and B
21-0179

Adjourn
ATTENTION: A portion of the meeting may be held in closed/executive session for the purpose of discussing and
deliberating upon open investigations, which are preliminary matters that may result in litigation being filed on behalf
of the Board and include the review of information required to be conducted in privacy according to federal and state
law (under Agenda Items III). The specific statutory sections providing exemptions are: KRS 61.810(1)(c) KRS
61.878(1)(a) KRS 61.810(1)(j) KRS 61.878(1)(h) KRS 61.810(1)(k). Following discussion and deliberation, any and all
action will be taken in open/public session.

KENTUCKY BOARD OF PHARMACY
via Zoom teleconference
CASE REVIEW PANEL
MINUTES
August 24, 2021
Jill Rhodes, President of the Board, called the meeting to order at 9:05 a.m. Present were: Jill
Rhodes, President of the Board; Larry Hadley, Executive Director; Eden Davis, General Counsel;
Katie Busroe, Pharmacy Inspections and Investigations Supervisor; Paul Daniels, Pharmacy and
Drug Inspector; Jessica Williams, Pharmacy and Drug Inspector; Rhonda Hamilton, Pharmacy
and Drug Inspector; John Romines, Pharmacy and Drug Inspector; Darla Sayre, Executive Staff
Advisor and Kaci Christopher, Law Clerk. Absent: Amanda Harding, Pharmacy and Drug
Inspector.
Larry Hadley moved to approve the minutes of the July 20, 2021 and August 3, 2021 meetings.
Jill Rhodes seconded, and the motion passed unanimously.
Larry Hadley moved for the Case Review Panel to go into closed session to include investigating
inspectors, Eden Davis, Darla Sayre and Kaci Christopher for the purpose of reviewing,
discussing and deliberating upon open investigations[20-0025, 20-0122, 20-0231, 21-0004, 210009, 21-0048, 21-0056, 21-0071, 21-0075, 21-0080, 21-0084, 21-0089, 21-0091, 21-0109, 210110, 21-0112, 11-0120, 21-0122, 21-0124, 21-0125, 21-0126, 21-0131, 21-0134, 21-0135, 210137, 21-0138, 21-0141, 21-0147, 21-0149, 21-0152, 21-0153, 21-0154, 21-0155, 21-0157, 210158, 21-0160, 21-0161, 21-0162, 21-0167, 21-0179] all of which are matters that may result in
litigation being filed on behalf of the Board and/or require the review of information deemed
confidential in accordance with state and federal law. The deliberations require the panel
members to review and discuss information compiled in the course of the Board’s work to
detect and investigate statutory and regulatory violations (the premature release of which may
harm the Board’s ability to carry out its administrative adjudication or prospective law
enforcement functions, if an investigation remains open and final action is not taken in this
meeting) and to determine whether to initiate litigation on behalf of the Board against
individual licensees, permit holders or registrants. The statutory sections providing authorizing
executive session are KRS 61.810(c)(j) and (k) and KRS 61.878(1)(a) and (1)(h). Jill Rhodes
seconded, and the motion passed unanimously. Larry Hadley moved to come out of closed
session. Jill Rhodes seconded, and the motion passed unanimously.
Jill Rhodes moved to submit the following recommendations to the Board for approval. Larry
Hadley seconded, and the motion passed unanimously with the investigating inspector
abstaining from the vote to limit their role to that of a factfinder as follows:
•
•
•

Katie Busroe -21-0112, 21-0157
Paul Daniels – 20-0122, 21-0080, 21-0091, 21-0122, 21-0125, 21-0161
Rhonda Hamilton – 20-0231, 21-0134, 21-0147, 21-0152, 21-0155, 21-0160, 21-0167
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•
•

Jessica Williams – 21-0004, 21-0009, 21-0071, 21-0075, 21-0084, 21-0110, 21-0120, 210126, 21-0137, 21-0162, 21-0179
John Romines – 21-0056, 21-0124, 21-0153, 21-0158

Case 20-0122 A and D. Pharmacy permit holder allegedly:
• Failed to provide adequate security and control of drugs by allowing a technician to
access to controlled substances and prescription files in the absence of a pharmacist;
• Failed to provide accurate records in the dispensing of controlled substances by
maintaining invalid patient addresses in the pharmacy computer and submitting those
records to the Cabinet of Health and Family Services Kentucky All Schedule Prescription
Electronic Reporting (KASPER);
• Permitted a prescription to be dispensed for a practitioner to obtain a controlled
substance for the purpose of general dispensing or administering to patients;
• Engaged in unethical or unprofessional conduct by permitting pharmacy staff to use an
audio-video product to verify a prescription remotely;
• Failed to record data waiver numbers required on controlled substance prescription
• Engaged in unethical or unprofessional conduct by running a prescription intermediary
service; and
• Engaged in unethical or unprofessional conduct by employing pharmacists that failed to
exercise appropriate professional judgment in determining whether a prescription drug
order is lawful.
• Provided prescriptions for the purpose of general dispensing, administering or office
use.
Alleged Violations of Law:
• 201 KAR 2:100 Section 1 (1)(b) – a pharmacy shall be closed in the absence of a
pharmacist;
• 201 KAR 2:100 Section 1 (1)(a) – a pharmacy shall provide adequate security and control
of its controlled substances;
• 201 KAR 2:170 Section 1 (1)(b) – all information pertinent to a prescription shall be
entered into the system, including, the patient’s address;
• KRS 315.121 (1)(a) – unprofessional and unethical conduct;
• 21 CFR 1306.05(b) - a prescription for a Schedule III narcotic drug approved by FDA
specifically for “detoxification treatment” or “maintenance treatment” must include the
identification number issued by the Administrator under §1301.28(d) of this chapter;
• KRS 218A.200(4)- the record of all controlled substances dispensed, or otherwise shall
show the name and address of the person to whom, or for whose use; and
• 902 KAR 55:060 (5) – a prescription shall not be issued by a practitioner to obtain any
controlled substances for the purpose of general dispensing, administering or office use.
Pharmacist allegedly:
• Permitted a prescription to be dispensed for a practitioner to obtain a controlled
substance for the purpose of general dispensing or administering to patients;
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Failed to immediately reduce to writing, date and sign all oral prescriptions for
controlled substances; and
• Engaged in unethical or unprofessional conduct by failing to exercise appropriate
professional judgment in determining whether a prescription drug order is lawful.
Alleged Violations of Law:
• KRS 218A.180 (3)(b) - a prescription shall not be issued for a practitioner to obtain a
controlled substance for the purpose of general dispensing or administering to patients;
• KRS 218A.180 (6) - all oral prescriptions for controlled substances shall be immediately
reduced to writing, dated, and signed by the pharmacist; and
• KRS 315.121 (2)(j) - engaged in unethical or unprofessional conduct by failing to exercise
appropriate professional judgment in determining whether a prescription drug order is
lawful.
•

CRP Recommendation: There is sufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the Executive Director is directed to attempt resolution through an Agreed Order
and/or, if unsuccessful, to proceed with either an Administrative Conference, if requested, or
the issuance of a Formal Complaint and Notice of Hearing. Standard terms and $25,000
administrative fine, approved corrective action plan developed by permit owner and current
PIC to prevent future occurrences, quarterly inspections for one year consisting of an audit of
a random day’s scripts to be paid by permit holder not to exceed $1,000 per inspection.
Case 20-0122 B. Pharmacist in charge (PIC) allegedly:
• Failed to provide adequate security and control of drugs by allowing a technician to
access to controlled substances and prescription files in the absence of a pharmacist;
• Failed to maintain adequate records by maintaining invalid patient addresses in the
pharmacy computer system;
• Failed in the provision of pharmacy services by submitting invalid patient addresses to
KASPER;
• Permitted a prescription to be dispensed for a practitioner to obtain a controlled
substance for the purpose of general dispensing or administering to patients;
• Failed to immediately reduce to writing, date and sign all oral prescriptions for
controlled substances;
• Engaged in unethical or unprofessional conduct by permitting pharmacy staff to use an
audio-video product to verify a prescription remotely; and
• Engaged in unethical or unprofessional conduct by failing to exercise appropriate
professional judgment in determining whether a prescription drug order is lawful.
Alleged Violations of Law:
• 201 KAR 2:205. Section 2 (3)(b) – the pharmacist-in-charge shall be responsible for the
procurement, storage, security, and disposition of drugs;
• 201 KAR 2:205 Section 2 (3)(b) – PIC requirements for the provision of pharmacy
services;
• KRS 218A.180 (3)(b) - a prescription shall not be issued for a practitioner to obtain a
controlled substance for the purpose of general dispensing or administering to patients;.
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•
•
•

KRS 218A.180 (6) - all oral prescriptions for controlled substances shall be immediately
reduced to writing, dated, and signed by the pharmacist;
KRS 315.121 (1)(a) – unprofessional and unethical conduct; and
KRS 315.121 (2)(j) - engaged in unethical or unprofessional conduct by failing to exercise
appropriate professional judgment in determining whether a prescription drug order is
lawful.

CRP Recommendation: There is sufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the Executive Director is directed to attempt resolution through an Agreed Order
and/or, if unsuccessful, to proceed with either an Administrative Conference, if requested, or
the issuance of a Formal Complaint and Notice of Hearing. Standard terms and $5,000
administrative fine, additional 6 hours of continuing education on pharmacy law.
Case 20-0122 C. Pharmacist allegedly:
• Failed to immediately reduce to writing, date and sign all oral prescriptions for
controlled substances;
• Engaged in unethical or unprofessional conduct by using an audio-video product to
verify a prescription remotely; and
• Engaged in unethical or unprofessional conduct by failing to exercise appropriate
professional judgment in determining whether a prescription drug order is lawful.
Alleged Violations of Law:
• KRS 218A.180 (6) - all oral prescriptions for controlled substances shall be immediately
reduced to writing, dated, and signed by the pharmacist;
• KRS 315.121 (1)(a) – unprofessional and unethical conduct; and
• KRS 315.121 (2)(j) - engaged in unethical or unprofessional conduct by failing to exercise
appropriate professional judgment in determining whether a prescription drug order is
lawful.
CRP Recommendation: There is sufficient evidence of a violation, however, the penalty shall
be the issuance of a Letter of Reprimand.
Case 20-0122 E. Pharmacy Technician allegedly:
• Engaged in unethical or unprofessional conduct by working in a pharmacy in the
absence of a pharmacist.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• KRS 315.121 (1)(a) – unprofessional and unethical conduct.
CRP Recommendation: There is insufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the case is closed without prejudice upon issuance of a Letter of Concern.
Case 20-0231 A Revisit. Pharmacy permit holder allegedly:
• Sold a misbranded drug due to medication error;
• Sold a prescription for sulfadiazine 500mg tablets as sulfasalazine 500mg tablets; and
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Sold a prescription for leucovorin calcium 15mg tablets as leucovorin calcium 25mg
tablets.
• Engaged in unprofessional and unethical conduct by failing to keep accurate records of
prescriptions dispensed.
Alleged Violations of Law:
• KRS 217.065 (1)—drug misbranded if labeling is false or misleading; and
• KRS 315.121 (1)(a)—unprofessional or unethical conduct.
•

CRP Recommendation: There is sufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the Executive Director is directed to attempt resolution through an Agreed Order
and/or, if unsuccessful, to proceed with either an Administrative Conference, if requested, or
the issuance of a Formal Complaint and Notice of Hearing. Standard terms and $1,000
administrative fine, approved corrective action plan developed by permit holder and current
PIC to prevent future occurrences. Follow-up inspection within 3 months to ensure
compliance with corrective action plan.
Case 20-0231 B Revisit. Pharmacist in charge allegedly:
• Failed in the provision of pharmacy services.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• 201 KAR 2:205 Section 2 (3)(a) – pharmacist in charge shall be responsible for quality
assurance programs for pharmacy services designed to objectively and systematically
monitor care, pursue opportunities for improvement, and resolve identified problems as
may exist.
CRP Recommendation: There is sufficient evidence of a violation, however, the penalty shall
be the issuance of a Letter of Reprimand.
Case 20-0231 C Revisit. Pharmacist allegedly:
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct by engaging in conduct likely to harm
the public with or without established proof of actual injury by committing a medication
error; and
• Entered a prescription for sulfadiazine 500mg into the computer as sulfasalazine 500mg.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• KRS 315.121 (2)(d) – unprofessional or unethical conduct by engaging in conduct likely
to harm public with or without established proof of actual injury.
CRP Recommendation: There is sufficient evidence of a violation, however, the penalty shall
be the issuance of a Letter of Reprimand.
Case 20-0231 D Revisit. Pharmacist allegedly:
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct by engaging in conduct likely to harm
the public with or without established proof of actual injury by committing a medication
error; and
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Was the pharmacist on duty when a prescription for leucovorin 15mg was changed to
leucovorin 25mg.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• KRS 315.121 (2)(d) – unprofessional or unethical conduct by engaging in conduct likely
to harm public with or without established proof of actual injury.
•

CRP Recommendation: There is sufficient evidence of a violation, however, the penalty shall
be the issuance of a Letter of Reprimand.
Case 20-0231 E Revisit. Pharmacist allegedly:
• Did not assess the prescription order during the prospective drug use review;
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct by engaging in conduct likely to harm
the public with or without established proof of actual injury by committing a medication
error; and
• Performed a drug utilization review (DUR) and data entry verification for a prescription
for leucovorin 15mg that was entered for leucovorin 25mg.
Alleged Violations of Law:
• 201 KAR 2:210 Section 4 (1) and (2) – a prospective drug use review shall be conducted
by the pharmacist, including an assessment of the prescription drug order; and
• KRS 315.121 (2)(d) – unprofessional or unethical conduct by engaging in conduct likely
to harm public with or without established proof of actual injury.
CRP Recommendation: There is sufficient evidence of a violation, however, the penalty shall
be the issuance of a Letter of Reprimand.
Case 20-0231 F Revisit. Pharmacist allegedly:
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct by engaging in conduct likely to harm
the public with or without established proof of actual injury by committing a medication
error; and
• Performed a product verification for a prescription for leucovorin 15mg that was
entered for leucovorin 25mg.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• KRS 315.121 (2)(d) – unprofessional or unethical conduct by engaging in conduct likely
to harm public with or without established proof of actual injury.
CRP Recommendation: There is sufficient evidence of a violation, however, the penalty shall
be the issuance of a Letter of Reprimand.
Case 20-0231 G Revisit. Pharmacist allegedly:
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct by engaging in conduct likely to harm
the public with or without established proof of actual injury by committing a medication
error; and
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Performed a product verification for a prescription for sulfadiazine 500mg that was
entered for sulfasalazine 500mg.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• KRS 315.121 (2)(d)—unprofessional or unethical conduct by engaging in conduct likely
to harm public with or without established proof of actual injury.
•

CRP Recommendation: There is sufficient evidence of a violation, however, the penalty shall
be the issuance of a Letter of Reprimand.
Case 21-0004 A. Pharmacy permit holder allegedly:
• Sold a misbranded drug.
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct. Patient allegedly received a weekly
medication organizer containing another patient’s medications. Pharmacy failed to
maintain complete and accurate records of original and refill dispensing.
Alleged Violations of Law:
• KRS 217.065 (1) – misbranding of drug; and
• KRS 315.121 (1)(a) – unprofessional or unethical conduct.
CRP Recommendation: There is sufficient evidence of a violation, however, the penalty shall
be the issuance of a Letter of Reprimand.
Case 21-0004 B. Pharmacist-in-charge (PIC) allegedly:
• Failed in the provision of pharmacy services.
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct likely to harm the public with or
without established proof of actual injury by committing a dispensing error and
failing to ensure accurate recording of each fill in dispensing system. PIC allegedly
verified weekly medication organizer containing the wrong patient’s medications.
Alleged Violations of Law:
• 201 KAR 2:205 Section 2(3)(b) – PIC responsible for provision of pharmacy services; and
• KRS 315.121 (2)(d) – engaging in conduct likely to deceive, defraud, or harm the public,
demonstrating a willful or careless disregard for the health, welfare, or safety of a
patient, or engaging in conduct which substantially departs from accepted standards of
pharmacy practice ordinarily exercised by a pharmacist, with or without established
proof of actual injury.
CRP Recommendation: There is sufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the Executive Director is directed to attempt resolution through an Agreed Order
and/or, if unsuccessful, to proceed with either an Administrative Conference, if requested, or
the issuance of a Formal Complaint and Notice of Hearing. Standard terms and $500
administrative fine, additional 6 hours of continuing education on medication errors and their
prevention.
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Case 21-0009 A. Pharmacy permit holder allegedly:
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct by failing to reverse prescription
that was not picked up and failing to contact prescriber for prior authorization in a
timely manner, which delayed patient’s therapy and increased out-of-pocket costs.
Alleged Violations of Law:
• KRS 315.121 (1)(a) – unprofessional or unethical conduct.
CRP Recommendation: There is insufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the case is closed without prejudice.
Case 21-0009 B. Pharmacist-in-charge (PIC) allegedly:
• Failed in the provision of pharmacy services. Patient’s refill was delayed because
pharmacy allegedly failed to reverse prescription that was not picked up.
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct likely to deceive, defraud, or harm the
public by failing to reverse prescription that was not picked up, which delayed patient’s
therapy.
Alleged Violations of Law:
• 201 KAR 2:205 Section 2(3)(b) – PIC responsible for provision of pharmacy services; and
• KRS 315.121 (2)(d) – engaging in conduct likely to deceive, defraud, or harm the public,
demonstrating a willful or careless disregard for the health, welfare, or safety of a
patient, or engaging in conduct which substantially departs from accepted standards of
pharmacy practice ordinarily exercised by a pharmacist, with or without established
proof of actual injury.
CRP Recommendation: There is insufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the case is closed without prejudice.
Case 21-0048 A. Pharmacy permit holder allegedly:
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct. Pharmacy’s opioid dispensing
policy allegedly requires that pharmacist void remaining quantity and refills
authorized by prescriber on CIII-CV prescriptions initially filled for a partial quantity.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• KRS 315.121 (1)(a) – unprofessional or unethical conduct.
CRP Recommendation: There is sufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the Executive Director is directed to attempt resolution through an Agreed Order
and/or, if unsuccessful, to proceed with either an Administrative Conference, if requested, or
the issuance of a Formal Complaint and Notice of Hearing. Standard terms and $1,000
administrative fine.
Case 21-0048 B. Pharmacist-in-charge (PIC) allegedly:
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct. Pharmacy’s opioid dispensing
policy allegedly requires that pharmacist void remaining quantity and refills
Page 8 of 37

authorized by prescriber on CIII-CV prescriptions initially filled for a partial quantity.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• KRS 315.121 (1)(a) – unprofessional or unethical conduct.
CRP Recommendation: There is insufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the case is closed without prejudice.
Case 21-0056 A. Pharmacy permit holder allegedly:
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct. Pharmacy allowed confidential patient
information to be released and failed to properly identify patient.
Alleged Violations of Law:
• KRS 315.121 (1)(a) – Unprofessional or unethical conduct; and
• 201 KAR 2:210 Section 3 – A patient record shall be held in confidence.
CRP Recommendation: There is insufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the case is closed without prejudice.
Case 21-0056 B. Pharmacist in charge allegedly:
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct by allowing confidential patient
information to be released and failed to properly identify patient.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• KRS 315.121 (2)(d) – Engaging in conduct likely to deceive, defraud, or harm the public.
CRP Recommendation: There is insufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the case is closed without prejudice.
Case 21-0056 C. Pharmacy technician allegedly:
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct by releasing confidential patient
information to someone not authorized to receive it.
Alleged Violations of Law:
• KRS 315.121 (2)(b) -- Divulging or revealing to unauthorized persons patient
information or the nature of professional services rendered without the patient's
express consent; and
• KRS 315.121 (2)(d) – Engaging in conduct likely to deceive, defraud, or harm the public.
Case 21-0071 A. Pharmacy permit holder allegedly:
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct by filling fraudulent controlled
substance prescriptions issued in complainant’s name on 3 separate occasions.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• KRS 315.121 (1)(a) – unprofessional or unethical conduct.
CRP Recommendation: There is insufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the case is closed without prejudice.
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Case 21-0071 B. Pharmacist-in-charge (PIC) allegedly:
• Failed in the provision of pharmacy services. Fraudulent prescriptions issued in
complainant’s name were dispensed on 3 separate occasions.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• 201 KAR 2:205 Section 2(3)(b) – PIC responsible for provision of pharmacy services.
CRP Recommendation: There is insufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the case is closed without prejudice.
Case 21-0071 C. Pharmacist allegedly:
• Failed to exercise appropriate professional judgment in determining whether a
prescription drug order is lawful. Pharmacist filled fraudulent prescriptions issued in
complainant’s name on 3 separate occasions.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• KRS 315.121 (1)(j) - failing to exercise appropriate professional judgment in determining
whether a prescription drug order is lawful.
CRP Recommendation: There is insufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the case is closed without prejudice.
Case 21-0075 A. Pharmacy permit holder allegedly:
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct. Patient allegedly experienced a
delay in therapy due to pharmacist refusing to fill prescriptions as written by
prescriber.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• KRS 315.121 (1)(a) – unprofessional or unethical conduct.
CRP Recommendation: There is insufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the case is closed without prejudice.
Case 21-0075 B. Pharmacist allegedly:
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct by allegedly refusing to fill
prescriptions as written by prescriber and causing patient to experience a delay in
therapy.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• KRS 315.121 (2)(d) – engaging in conduct likely to deceive, defraud, or harm the public,
demonstrating a willful or careless disregard for the health, welfare, or safety of a
patient, or engaging in conduct which substantially departs from accepted standards of
pharmacy practice ordinarily exercised by a pharmacist, with or without established
proof of actual injury.
CRP Recommendation: There is insufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the case is closed without prejudice.
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Case 21-0080. Pharmacist allegedly:
• Is unable to engage in the practice of pharmacy with reasonable skill, competency and
safety to the public due to impairment.
Alleged Violations of Law: Pharmacist alleged violation of law:
• KRS 315.121 (1) (b) – mental or physical incapacity preventing registrant from safely
engaging in the practice of pharmacy.
CRP Recommendation: There is sufficient evidence developed and the investigator is
directed to conduct further investigation.
Case 21-0084 A. Pharmacy permit holder allegedly:
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct. Patient allegedly received another
patient’s prescription.
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct by failing to maintain confidentiality
of patient information due to a dispensing error.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• KRS 315.121 (1)(a) – unprofessional or unethical conduct.
CRP Recommendation: There is sufficient evidence of a violation, however, the penalty shall
be the issuance of a Letter of Reprimand.
Case 21-0084 B. Pharmacist-in-charge (PIC) allegedly:
• Failed in the provision of pharmacy services. Patient allegedly received another
patient’s prescription.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• 201 KAR 2:205 Section 2(3)(b) – PIC responsible for provision of pharmacy services.
CRP Recommendation: There is insufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the case is closed without prejudice.
Case 21-0084 C. Pharmacist allegedly:
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct likely to harm the public with or
without established proof of actual injury by committing a dispensing error. Patient
allegedly received another patient’s prescription.
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct by divulging or revealing to
unauthorized persons confidential patient information due to a dispensing error.
Alleged Violations of Law:
• KRS 315.121 (2)(d) – engaging in conduct likely to deceive, defraud, or harm the public,
demonstrating a willful or careless disregard for the health, welfare, or safety of a
patient, or engaging in conduct which substantially departs from accepted standards of
pharmacy practice ordinarily exercised by a pharmacist, with or without established
proof of actual injury; and
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•

KRS 315:121 (2)(b) – divulging or revealing to unauthorized persons patient information
or the nature of professional services rendered without the patient's express consent or
without order or direction of a court.

CRP Recommendation: There is insufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the case is closed without prejudice.
Case 21-0084 D. Pharmacy technician allegedly:
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct by divulging or revealing to
unauthorized persons confidential patient information by releasing a prescription to
the wrong patient at point-of-sale.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• KRS 315:121 (2)(b) – divulging or revealing to unauthorized persons patient information
or the nature of professional services rendered without the patient's express consent or
without order or direction of a court.
CRP Recommendation: There is insufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the case is closed without prejudice upon issuance of a Letter of Concern.
Case 21-0089 A. Pharmacy permit holder allegedly:
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct by shipping a prescription containing a
short dated product. Pharmacy shipped a dispensed epinephrine auto injector on April
21, 2021 that expired on May 18, 2021.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• KRS 315.121 (1)(a) – general unprofessional or unethical conduct.
CRP Recommendation: There is sufficient evidence developed and the executive director is
directed to conduct further investigation by reaching out to 21-0089G for further information
regarding activities involving Kentucky patient prescriptions.
Case 21-0089 B. Pharmacist in charge (PIC) allegedly:
• Failed in the provision of pharmacy services. Pharmacy shipped a dispensed epinephrine
auto injector on April 21, 2021 that expired on May 18, 2021.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• 201 KAR 2:205 Section 2 (3)(b) – PIC responsible for provision of pharmacy services.
CRP Recommendation: There is sufficient evidence developed and the executive director is
directed to conduct further investigation by reaching out to 21-0089G for further information
regarding activities involving Kentucky patient prescriptions.
Case 21-0089 C. Pharmacist allegedly:
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct by engaging in conduct which
substantially departs from accepted standards of pharmacy practice ordinarily exercised
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by a pharmacist with or without established proof of actual injury. Pharmacist dispensed
epinephrine auto injector on April 21, 2021 that expired on May 18, 2021.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• KRS 315.121 (2)(d) - unprofessional or unethical conduct by engaging in conduct which
substantially departs from accepted standards of pharmacy practice ordinarily exercised
by a pharmacist with or without established proof of actual injury.
CRP Recommendation: There is sufficient evidence developed and the executive director is
directed to conduct further investigation by reaching out to 21-0089G for further information
regarding activities involving Kentucky patient prescriptions.
Case 21-0089 D. Non-resident pharmacy permit holder allegedly:
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct by facilitating the dispensing a
prescription containing a short dated product.
Alleged Violations of Law:
• KRS 315.121 (1)(a) – general unprofessional or unethical conduct.
CRP Recommendation: There is sufficient evidence developed and the executive director is
directed to conduct further investigation by reaching out to 21-0089G for further information
regarding activities involving Kentucky patient prescriptions.
Case 21-0089 E. Pharmacist in charge allegedly:
• Failed in the provision of pharmacy services. Pharmacy facilitated the dispensing of a
prescription containing a short dated product.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• 201 KAR 2:205 Section 2 (3)(b) – PIC responsible for provision of pharmacy services.
CRP Recommendation: There is sufficient evidence developed and the executive director is
directed to conduct further investigation by reaching out to 21-0089G for further information
regarding activities involving Kentucky patient prescriptions.
Case 21-0089 F. Pharmacist allegedly:
• Failed to perform a proper prospective drug use review. Pharmacy shipped a dispensed
epinephrine auto injector on April 21, 2021 that expired on May 18, 2021.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• 201 KAR 2:210 Section 4 (3) – requirements of prospective drug use review.
CRP Recommendation: There is sufficient evidence developed and the executive director is
directed to conduct further investigation by reaching out to 21-0089G for further information
regarding activities involving Kentucky patient prescriptions.
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Case 21-0089 G. Non-resident pharmacy allegedly:
• Engaged in the practice of pharmacy in Kentucky without a Kentucky pharmacy permit.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• KRS 315.0351 (1)(a) – requirement to hold pharmacy permit if do business, including by
phone, inside the Commonwealth.
CRP Recommendation: There is sufficient evidence developed and the executive director is
directed to conduct further investigation by reaching out to 21-0089G for further information
regarding activities involving Kentucky patient prescriptions.
Case 21-0091 A. Pharmacy permit holder allegedly:
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct by failing to dispense a medication in a
timely manner.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• KRS 315.121(1)(a) – unprofessional or unethical conduct.
CRP Recommendation: There is insufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the case is closed without prejudice.
Case 21-0091 B. Pharmacist in charge (PIC) allegedly:
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct by failing to dispense a medication in a
timely manner.
• Failed in the provision of pharmacy services.
Alleged Violations of Law:
• KRS 315.121(1)(a) – unprofessional or unethical conduct; and
• 201 KAR 2:205 Section 2(3)(b) – the provision of pharmacy services.
CRP Recommendation: There is insufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the case is closed without prejudice.
Case 21-0091 C. Pharmacist allegedly:
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct by failing to dispense a medication in a
timely manner.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• KRS 315.121(1)(a) – unprofessional or unethical conduct.
CRP Recommendation: There is insufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the case is closed without prejudice.
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Case 21-0109 A. Pharmacy permit holder allegedly:
• Failed to provide adequate security and control of drugs. Pharmacy reported a loss of
1138 oxycodone/APAP tablets due to technician diversion. Technician employed
between October 2020 and May 2021.
• Failed to place a pharmacist in charge (PIC) of pharmacy. Pharmacy without a PIC from
3/23/2021 until 4/11/2021 and from 5/20/2021 and 6/9/2021.
• Failed to schedule PIC to be physically present in the pharmacy for the amount of time
appropriate to provide supervision and control. Temporary PIC scheduled to be present
in pharmacy for a minimum of 10 hours per week.
Alleged Violations of Law:
• 201 KAR 2:100 Section 1 (1)(a) – required to provide adequate security and control of
drugs;
• KRS 315.020 (1) – no owner of a pharmacy shall fail to place a pharmacist in charge of
pharmacy; and
• 201 KAR 2:205 Section 2 (2)(b) – pharmacist in charge to be present in pharmacy for a
minimum of ten hours per week or amount of time appropriate to provide supervision
and control.
CRP Recommendation: There is sufficient evidence of a violation, however, the penalty shall
be the issuance of a Letter of Reprimand.
Case 21-0109 B. Pharmacist in charge allegedly:
• Failed to provide adequate security and control of drugs. Pharmacy reported a loss of
1138 oxycodone/APAP tablets due to technician diversion. PIC prior to 12/28/2020.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• 201 KAR 2:205 Section 2 (3)(b) – PIC responsible for security of drugs.
CRP Recommendation: There is insufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the case is closed without prejudice.
Case 21-0109 C. Pharmacist in charge allegedly:
• Failed to provide adequate security and control of drugs. Pharmacy reported a loss of
1138 oxycodone/APAP tablets due to technician diversion. PIC between 1/10/2021 and
2/12/2021.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• 201 KAR 2:205 Section 2 (3)(b) – PIC responsible for security of drugs.
CRP Recommendation: There is insufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the case is closed without prejudice.
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Case 21-0109 D. Pharmacist in charge allegedly:
• Failed to provide adequate security and control of drugs. Pharmacy reported a loss of
1138 oxycodone/APAP tablets due to technician diversion. PIC between 2/12/2021 and
3/23/2021.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• 201 KAR 2:205 Section 2 (3)(b) – PIC responsible for security of drugs.
CRP Recommendation: There is insufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the case is closed without prejudice.
Case 21-0109 E. Pharmacist in charge allegedly:
• Failed to provide adequate security and control of drugs. Pharmacy reported a loss of
1138 oxycodone/APAP tablets due to technician diversion. PIC between 4/11/2021 and
5/17/2021.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• 201 KAR 2:205 Section 2 (3)(b) – PIC responsible for security of drugs.
CRP Recommendation: There is insufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the case is closed without prejudice.
Case 21-0109 F. Registered pharmacy technician allegedly:
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct by selling, transferring, dispensing,
ingesting, or administering a drug for which a prescription drug order is required,
without first receiving a prescription drug order for the drug.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• KRS 315.121 (2)(g) - unprofessional or unethical conduct by selling, transferring,
dispensing, ingesting, or administering a drug for which a prescription drug order is
required, without first receiving a prescription drug order for the drug.
CRP Recommendation: There is sufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the Executive Director is directed to attempt resolution through an Agreed Order
and/or, if unsuccessful, to proceed with either an Administrative Conference, if requested, or
the issuance of a Formal Complaint and Notice of Hearing. Standard terms and revocation
with an emergency suspension of registration and filing of complaint with the Attorney
General.
Case 21-0110 A. Pharmacy permit holder allegedly:
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct by refusing to continue filling
prescriptions for patient at the pharmacy.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• KRS 315.121 (1)(a) – unprofessional or unethical conduct.
CRP Recommendation: There is insufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
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action and the case is closed without prejudice.
Case 21-0110 B. Pharmacist-in-charge (PIC) allegedly:
• Failed in the provision of pharmacy services.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• 201 KAR 2:205 Section 2(3)(b) – PIC responsible for provision of pharmacy services.
CRP Recommendation: There is insufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the case is closed without prejudice.
Case 21-0110 C. Pharmacist allegedly:
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct by failing to notify patient prior to
filling partial quantity of controlled substance prescription and refusing to continue
filling prescriptions for patient at the pharmacy.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• KRS 315.121 (1)(a) – unprofessional or unethical conduct.
CRP Recommendation: There is insufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the case is closed without prejudice.
Case 21-0112 A Revisit. Non-resident pharmacy permit holder allegedly:
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct by:
• Intercepting and diverting prescriptions from a competitor pharmacy;
• Publishing or circulating false, misleading, or deceptive statements concerning a
competitor pharmacy by stating in an email, “We cannot guarantee the efficacy
or authenticity of products purchased from a third party pharmacy;” and
• Obtaining remuneration by fraud, misrepresentation, or deception by obtaining
payment for prescriptions that were intercepted and diverted from a competitor
pharmacy.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• KRS 315.121 (1)(a) – unprofessional or unethical conduct.
CRP Recommendation: There is insufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the case is closed without prejudice. Complaint will be referred to Consumer
Affairs at the Attorney General’s office.
Case 21-0112 B Revisit. Pharmacist-in-charge of a non-resident pharmacy permit holder
allegedly:
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct by:
• Intercepting and diverting prescriptions from a competitor pharmacy;
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Publishing or circulating false, misleading, or deceptive statements concerning a
competitor pharmacy by stating in an email, “We cannot guarantee the efficacy
or authenticity of products purchased from a third party pharmacy;” and
• Obtaining remuneration by fraud, misrepresentation, or deception by obtaining
payment for prescriptions that were intercepted and diverted from a competitor
pharmacy.
Alleged Violations of Law:
• KRS 315.121 (1)(a) – unprofessional or unethical conduct;
• KRS 315.121 (2)(a) – publication of false, misleading, or deceptive statements
concerning the practice of pharmacy;
• KRS 315.121 (2)(d) – engaging in conduct likely to deceive, defraud, or harm the public;
and
• KRS 315.121 (2)(h) – obtaining any remuneration by fraud, misrepresentation, or
deception.
•

CRP Recommendation: There is insufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the case is closed without prejudice. Complaint will be referred to Consumer
Affairs at the Attorney General’s office.
Case 21-0112 C Revisit. Non-permitted entity allegedly:
• Engaged in the practice of pharmacy without a pharmacy permit by providing a
software system that:
• Denies previously approved prescriptions; and
• Communicates with patients regarding which pharmacy or medication can best
help the patient.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• KRS 315.0351 (1)(a) – any pharmacy located outside the Commonwealth which does
business within the Commonwealth within the meaning of KRS Chapter 315, shall hold a
current pharmacy permit.
CRP Recommendation: There is insufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the case is closed without prejudice. Complaint will be referred to Consumer
Affairs at the Attorney General’s office.
Case 21-0120 A. Pharmacy permit holder allegedly:
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct by failing to locate electronic
prescription stored in pharmacy dispensing system in timely manner and failing to
fill patient’s medication on fill date specified on prescription.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• KRS 315.121 (1)(a) – unprofessional or unethical conduct.
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CRP Recommendation: There is sufficient evidence of a violation, however, the penalty shall
be the issuance of a Letter of Reprimand.
Case 21-0120 B. Pharmacist-in-charge (PIC) allegedly:
• Failed in the provision of pharmacy services. Pharmacy staff allegedly failed to
locate electronic prescription stored in pharmacy dispensing system in timely
manner.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• 201 KAR 2:205 Section 2(3)(b) – PIC responsible for provision of pharmacy services.
CRP Recommendation: There is sufficient evidence of a violation, however, the penalty shall
be the issuance of a Letter of Reprimand.
Case 21-0120 C. Pharmacist allegedly:
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct by refusing to fill patient’s
medication on fill date specified on prescription.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• KRS 315.121 (2)(d) – engaging in conduct likely to deceive, defraud, or harm the public,
demonstrating a willful or careless disregard for the health, welfare, or safety of a
patient, or engaging in conduct which substantially departs from accepted standards of
pharmacy practice ordinarily exercised by a pharmacist, with or without established
proof of actual injury.
CRP Recommendation: There is insufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the case is closed without prejudice.
Case 21-0122 A. Pharmacy permit holder allegedly:
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct by employing a pharmacist who
refused to dispense a prescription.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• KRS 315.121 (1) (a) – unprofessional or unethical conduct.
CRP Recommendation: There is insufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the case is closed without prejudice.
Case 21-0122 B. Pharmacist in charge (PIC) allegedly:
• Failed in the provision of pharmacy services.
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct by failing to exercise appropriate
professional judgment in determining whether a prescription drug order is lawful.
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct by threatening a patient for filing a
complaint with the Board of Pharmacy.
Alleged Violations of Law:
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201 KAR 2:205 Section 2 (3)(b) – PIC requirements for the provision of pharmacy
services;
• KRS 315.121 (2) (j) – failing to exercise appropriate professional judgment in
determining whether a prescription drug order is lawful; and
• KRS 315.121 (1) (a) – unprofessional or unethical conduct.

•

CRP Recommendation: There is insufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the case is closed without prejudice.
Case 21-0122 C. Pharmacy permit holder allegedly:
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct by employing a pharmacist who
refused to dispense a prescription.
Alleged Violations of Law:
• KRS 315.121 (1)(a) – unprofessional or unethical conduct.
CRP Recommendation: There is insufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the case is closed without prejudice.
Case 21-0122 D. Pharmacist in charge (PIC) allegedly:
• Failed in the provision of pharmacy services.
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct by failing to exercise appropriate
professional judgment in determining whether a prescription drug order is lawful.
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct by threatening a patient for filing a
complaint with the Board of Pharmacy.
Alleged Violations of Law:
• 201 KAR 2:205 Section 2 (3)(b) – PIC requirements for the provision of pharmacy
services;
• KRS 315.121 (2)(j) – failing to exercise appropriate professional judgment in
determining whether a prescription drug order is lawful; and
• KRS 315.121 (1)(a) – unprofessional or unethical conduct.
CRP Recommendation: There is insufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the case is closed without prejudice.
Case 21-0124 A. Pharmacy permit holder allegedly:
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct. Pharmacy reported incorrect data to
Kentucky All Schedule Prescription Electronic Reporting (KASPER) causing a delay in
patient receiving medication.
Alleged Violations of Law:
• KRS 315.121 (1) (a) – Unprofessional or unethical conduct;
• KRS 315.121 (1)(h) – violation of KRS 315, KRS 218A, KRS 217 and associated
regulations; and
• KRS 218A.202(5)(d)- Electronic system for monitoring control substances.
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CRP Recommendation: There is insufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the case is closed without prejudice.
Case 21-0124 B. Pharmacist in Charge allegedly:
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct by engaging in conduct likely to harm
the public with or without established proof of actual injury. Pharmacy reported
incorrect data to KASPER causing a delay in patient receiving medication.
Alleged Violations of Law:
• KRS 315.121 (1)(a) – Unprofessional or unethical conduct;
• KRS 315.121 (1) (h) - violation of KRS 315, KRS 218A, KRS 217 and associated
regulations; and
• 201 KAR 2:205 Section 2(3)(e) - Making or filing of any reports required by state or
federal laws and regulations.
CRP Recommendation: There is insufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the case is closed without prejudice.
Case 21-0125 A. Pharmacy permit holder allegedly:
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct by employing a pharmacist who
refused to dispense a prescription.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• KRS 315.121 (1)(a) – unprofessional or unethical conduct.
CRP Recommendation: There is insufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the case is closed without prejudice.
Case 21-0125 B. Pharmacist in charge (PIC) allegedly:
• Failed in the provision of pharmacy services.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• 201 KAR 2:205 Section 2 (3)(b) – PIC requirements for the provision of pharmacy
services.
CRP Recommendation: There is insufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the case is closed without prejudice.
Case 21-0125 C. Pharmacist allegedly:
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct by failing to exercise appropriate
professional judgment in determining whether a prescription drug order is lawful.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• KRS 315.121 (2)(j) – failing to exercise appropriate professional judgment in
determining whether a prescription drug order is lawful.
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CRP Recommendation: There is insufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the case is closed without prejudice.
Case 21-0126 A and B.
SUMMARY:
• Patient asked prescriber’s office to send prescriptions to pharmacy located in same
building.
• Pharmacy filled one of two prescriptions sent in for patient.
• Patient claimed he was mistreated for having a disability and no private insurance.
• Pharmacist said he did not dispense patient’s prazosin prescription because it was too
soon to fill.
• Patient transferred both prescriptions to different pharmacy the following month.
Case 21-0126 A. Pharmacy permit holder allegedly:
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct by discriminating against patient
with a disability for not having private insurance.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• KRS 315.121 (1)(a) – unprofessional or unethical conduct.
CRP Recommendation: There is insufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the case is closed without prejudice.
Case 21-0126 B. Pharmacist-in-charge (PIC) allegedly:
• Failed in the provision of pharmacy services.
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct by discriminating against patient
with a disability for not having private insurance.
Alleged Violations of Law:
• 201 KAR 2:205 Section 2(3)(b) – PIC responsible for provision of pharmacy services; and
• KRS 315.121 (1)(a) – unprofessional or unethical conduct.
CRP Recommendation: There is insufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the case is closed without prejudice.
Case 21-0131 A. Pharmacy permit holder allegedly:
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct by refilling patient prescriptions without
the patient’s approval. Pharmacy requested a refill for an ear solution that the patient
did not request.
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct by selling prescriptions that did not
undergo a proper prospective drug use review. Pharmacy sold a refill prescription for a
non-dissolvable potassium chloride tablet when patient has requested the pharmacy
only dispense a dissolvable tablet.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• KRS 315.121 (1)(a) – general unprofessional or unethical conduct.
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CRP Recommendation: There is insufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the case is closed without prejudice upon issuance of a Letter of Concern.
Case 21-0131 B. Pharmacist in charge (PIC) allegedly:
• Failed in the proper provision of pharmacy services. Pharmacy sold a refill prescription
for a non-dissolvable potassium chloride tablet when patient has requested the
pharmacy only dispense a dissolvable tablet.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• 201 KAR 2:205 Section 2 (3)(b)- PIC responsible for provision of pharmacy services.
CRP Recommendation: There is insufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the case is closed without prejudice upon issuance of a Letter of Concern.
Case 21-0131 C. Pharmacist allegedly:
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct by engaging in conduct likely to harm
the public with or without proof of actual injury.
• Failed to perform a proper prospective drug use review.
Alleged Violations of Law:
• KRS 315.121 (2)(d) – unprofessional or unethical conduct by engaging in conduct likely
to harm the public with or without proof of actual injury; and
• 201 KAR 2:210 Section 4 – requirement for prospective drug use review by a pharmacist
prior to dispensing.
CRP Recommendation: There is sufficient evidence of a violation, however, the penalty shall
be the issuance of a Letter of Reprimand.
Case 21-0131 D. Pharmacist allegedly:
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct by engaging in conduct likely to harm
the public with or without proof of actual injury.
• Failed to perform a proper prospective drug use review.
Alleged Violations of Law:
• KRS 315.121 (2)(d) – unprofessional or unethical conduct by engaging in conduct likely
to harm the public with or without proof of actual injury; and
• 201 KAR 2:210 Section 4 – requirement for prospective drug use review by a pharmacist
prior to dispensing.
CRP Recommendation: There is sufficient evidence of a violation, however, the penalty shall
be the issuance of a Letter of Reprimand.
Case 21-0134. Pharmacy technician allegedly:
• Had a mental or physical incapacity that prevented her from assisting in the practice of
pharmacy with reasonable skill, competence, and safety to the public; and
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Had drugs and paraphernalia at work and tested positive for methamphetamines and
marijuana.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• KRS 315.121(1)(b) – mental or physical incapacity that prevents the licensee, permit
holder, or certificate holder from engaging or assisting in the practice of pharmacy or
the wholesale distribution or manufacturing of drugs with reasonable skill, competence,
and safety to the public.
•

CRP Recommendation: There is sufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the Executive Director is directed to attempt resolution through an Agreed Order
and/or, if unsuccessful, to proceed with either an Administrative Conference, if requested, or
the issuance of a Formal Complaint and Notice of Hearing. Standard terms and revocation
with an emergency suspension of registration and filing of complaint with the Attorney
General.
Case 21-0135 A. Pharmacy permit holder allegedly:
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct by allowing a received prescription to
be improperly deleted from the pharmacy system.
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct by failing to have an accurate record of
prescriptions dispensed to a patient.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• KRS 315.121 (1)(a) – general unprofessional or unethical conduct.
CRP Recommendation: There is sufficient evidence of a violation, however, the penalty shall
be the issuance of a Letter of Reprimand.
Case 21-0135 B. Pharmacist in charge (PIC) allegedly:
• Failed in the provision of pharmacy services. A received prescription was improperly
deleted from the pharmacy system.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• 201 KAR 2:205 Section 2 (3)(b) – PIC responsible for provision of pharmacy services.
CRP Recommendation: There is insufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the case is closed without prejudice upon issuance of a Letter of Concern.
Case 21-0135 C. Pharmacist allegedly:
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct by failing to exercise appropriate
professional judgement in determining whether a prescription drug order is lawful.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• KRS 315.121 (2)(j) – unprofessional or unethical conduct to fail to exercise appropriate
professional judgement in determining whether a prescription drug order is lawful.

Page 24 of 37

CRP Recommendation: There is insufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the case is closed without prejudice upon issuance of a Letter of Concern.
Case 21-0137 A. Pharmacy permit holder allegedly:
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct by failing to dispense a new
oxycodone prescription to patient who currently receives a monthly prescription for
the medication from a different prescriber.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• KRS 315.121 (1)(a) – unprofessional or unethical conduct.
CRP Recommendation: There is insufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the case is closed without prejudice.
Case 21-0137 B. Pharmacist allegedly:
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct by refusing to dispense a new
oxycodone prescription to patient who currently receives a monthly prescription for
the medication from a different prescriber.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• KRS 315.121 (1)(a) – unprofessional or unethical conduct.
CRP Recommendation: There is insufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the case is closed without prejudice.
Case 21-0138 A. Pharmacy permit holder allegedly:
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct by failing to dispense patient’s pain
medication in a timely manner.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• KRS 315.121 (1)(a) – unprofessional or unethical conduct.
CRP Recommendation: There is insufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the case is closed without prejudice.
Case 21-0138 B. Pharmacist allegedly:
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct likely to deceive or harm the public
by failing to dispense patient’s pain medication in a timely manner. Pharmacist
failed to identify and resolve system-generated hard stop in dispensing process and
prescription was delayed for several hours.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• KRS 315.121 (2)(d) – engaging in conduct likely to deceive, defraud, or harm the public,
demonstrating a willful or careless disregard for the health, welfare, or safety of a
patient, or engaging in conduct which substantially departs from accepted standards of
pharmacy practice ordinarily exercised by a pharmacist, with or without established
proof of actual injury.
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CRP Recommendation: There is insufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the case is closed without prejudice.
Case 21-0141 A. Pharmacy permit holder allegedly:
• Sold a misbranded drug due to a medication error. Patient allegedly received 80
gabapentin 800mg tablets instead of the labeled quantity of 120 tablets.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• KRS 217.065 (1) – a drug is deemed misbranded when its labeling is false or
misleading.
CRP Recommendation: There is insufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the case is closed without prejudice.
Case 21-0141 B. Pharmacist-in-charge (PIC) allegedly:
• Failed in the provision of pharmacy services. Patient allegedly received 80
gabapentin 800mg tablets instead of the labeled quantity of 120 tablets.
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct likely to harm the public with or
without established proof of actual injury by committing a medication error.
Pharmacist allegedly dispensed a prescription vial containing 80 gabapentin 800mg
tablets instead of the labeled quantity of 120 tablets.
Alleged Violations of Law:
• 201 KAR 2:205 Section 2 (3)(b) – PIC shall be responsible for the provision of
pharmacy services.
• KRS 315.121 (2)(d) – engaging in conduct likely to deceive, defraud, or harm the public,
demonstrating a willful or careless disregard for the health, welfare, or safety of a
patient, or engaging in conduct which substantially departs from accepted standards of
pharmacy practice ordinarily exercised by a pharmacist, with or without established
proof of actual injury.
CRP Recommendation: There is insufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the case is closed without prejudice.
Case 21-0147 A. Pharmacy permit holder allegedly:
• Engaged in unethical or unprofessional conduct by not dispensing the remainder of a
partially filled methylphenidate LA prescription after the patient had been told she
could pick up the remainder the following day.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• KRS 315.121 (1)(a) – unprofessional or unethical conduct.
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CRP Recommendation: There is insufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the case is closed without prejudice.
Case 21-0147 B. Pharmacist in charge allegedly:
• Failed in the provision of pharmacy services.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• 201 KAR 2:205 Section 2 (3)(b) – pharmacist in charge is responsible for the provision of
pharmacy services.
CRP Recommendation: There is insufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the case is closed without prejudice.
Case 21-0147 C. Pharmacist allegedly:
• Engaged in unethical or unprofessional conduct likely to deceive, defraud, or harm the
public, with or without established proof of actual injury; and
• Refused to dispense the remainder of a partially filled methylphenidate LA prescription
after the patient had been told she could pick up the remainder the following day.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• KRS 315.121 (2)(d) – engaging in conduct likely to deceive, defraud, or harm the public,
demonstrating a willful or careless disregard for the health, welfare, or safety of a
patient, with or without established proof of actual injury.
CRP Recommendation: There is insufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the case is closed without prejudice.
Case 21-0149 A. Pharmacy permit holder allegedly:
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct by failing to provide proper oversight
and equipment for technician administration of vaccinations. Technician stuck a patient
with a used syringe.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• KRS 315.121 (1)(a) – general unprofessional or unethical conduct.
CRP Recommendation: There is sufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the Executive Director is directed to attempt resolution through an Agreed Order
and/or, if unsuccessful, to proceed with either an Administrative Conference, if requested, or
the issuance of a Formal Complaint and Notice of Hearing. Standard terms and $2,500
administrative fine, approved corrective action plan developed by permit holder and current
PIC [implemented within three months] to provide adequate pharmacist staffing for
pharmacy technician supervision in all aspects of pharmacy workflow. Permit holder to pay
for recertification of pharmacy technician [21-0149 C] on immunizations. Recertification must
be completed prior to resuming administering immunizations.
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Case 21-0149 B. Pharmacist in charge (PIC) allegedly:
• Failed in the proper supervision of a technician administering vaccinations. Technician
stuck a patient with a used syringe.
Alleged Violations of Law:
• KRS 315.121 (1)(a) – general unprofessional or unethical conduct; and
• 201 KAR 2:205 Section 2 (3)(b) – PIC responsible for provision of pharmacy services.
CRP Recommendation: There is sufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the Executive Director is directed to attempt resolution through an Agreed Order
and/or, if unsuccessful, to proceed with either an Administrative Conference, if requested, or
the issuance of a Formal Complaint and Notice of Hearing. Standard terms and administrative
fine of $500, and additional hours of continuing education; 3 hours on immunizations 3 hours
on OSHA.
Case 21-0149 C. Registered pharmacy technician allegedly:
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct by engaging in conduct likely to harm
the public with or without established proof of actual injury. Technician stuck a patient
with a used syringe.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• KRS 315.121 (2)(d) – unprofessional or unethical conduct by engaging in conduct likely
to harm public with or without proof of injury.
CRP Recommendation: There is sufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the Executive Director is directed to attempt resolution through an Agreed Order
and/or, if unsuccessful, to proceed with either an Administrative Conference, if requested, or
the issuance of a Formal Complaint and Notice of Hearing. Standard terms and recertification
on immunizations to be paid by the permit holder. Recertification must be completed prior to
resuming administering immunizations.
Case 21-0152 A. Pharmacy permit holder allegedly:
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct.
• Sold a prescription that had been filled for hydrochlorothiazide instead of the prescribed
hydroxyzine.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• KRS 315.121 (1)(b) – unprofessional or unethical conduct.
CRP Recommendation: There is sufficient evidence of a violation, however, the penalty shall
be the issuance of a Letter of Reprimand.
Case 21-0152 B. Pharmacist in charge (PIC) allegedly:
• Failed in the provision of pharmacy services.
Alleged Violation of Law:
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•

201 KAR 2:205 Section 2 (3)(b) – the pharmacist in charge shall be responsible for
provision of pharmacy services.

CRP Recommendation: There is sufficient evidence of a violation, however, the penalty shall
be the issuance of a Letter of Reprimand.
Case 21-0152 C. Pharmacist allegedly:
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct by engaging in conduct likely to harm
the public with or without established proof of actual injury by committing a medication
error; and
• Dispensed a prescription that had been filled for hydrochlorothiazide instead of the
prescribed hydroxyzine.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• KRS 315.121 (2)(d) – unprofessional or unethical conduct includes engaging in conduct
likely to harm the public with or without established proof of actual injury.
CRP Recommendation: There is sufficient evidence of a violation, however, the penalty shall
be the issuance of a Letter of Reprimand.
Case 21-0153 A. Pharmacy permit holder allegedly:
• Sold a misbranded drug due to medication error. Patient allegedly was dispensed a
prescription for topiramate immediate release when the patient should have received
topiramate extended release.
Alleged Violations of Law:
• KRS 315.121 (1) (a) – Unprofessional or unethical conduct; and
• KRS 217.065 - Misbranding.
CRP Recommendation: There is insufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the case is closed without prejudice.
Case 21-0153 B. Pharmacist allegedly:
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct by engaging in conduct likely to harm
the public with or without established proof of actual injury by committing a
medication error. Patient allegedly was dispensed a prescription for topiramate
immediate release when the patient should have received topiramate extended
release.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• KRS 315.121 (2) (d) - Engaging in conduct likely to deceive, defraud, or harm the public,
demonstrating a willful or careless disregard for the health, welfare, or safety of a
patient, or engaging in conduct which substantially departs from accepted standards of
pharmacy practice ordinarily exercised by a pharmacist or pharmacy intern, with or
without established proof of actual injury.
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CRP Recommendation: There is insufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the case is closed without prejudice.
Case 21-0154 A. Pharmacy permit holder allegedly:
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct by selling a prescription for a
refrigerated product that was not stored appropriately.
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct by attempting to sell a prescription for
generic syringes when the patient has requested brand name.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• KRS 315.121 (1)(a) – general unprofessional or unethical conduct.
CRP Recommendation: There is insufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the case is closed without prejudice.
Case 21-0154 B. Pharmacist in charge (PIC) allegedly:
• Failed in the proper storage of drugs and provision of pharmacy services.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• 201 KAR 2:205 Section 2 (3)(b) – PIC responsible for storage of drugs and provision of
pharmacy services.
CRP Recommendation: There is insufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the case is closed without prejudice.
Case 21-0154 C. Pharmacist allegedly:
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct by engaging in conduct likely to harm
the public with or without established proof of actual injury.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• KRS 315.121 (2)(d) – unprofessional or unethical conduct to engage in conduct likely to
harm public with or without actual injury.
CRP Recommendation: There is insufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the case is closed without prejudice.
Case 21-0155 A. Pharmacy permit holder allegedly:
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct.
• Sold a prescription to one patient that belonged to another patient. The patient
received amphetamine salts 30mg instead of buprenorphine/naloxone 8mg/2mg.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• KRS 315.121 (1)(b) – unprofessional or unethical conduct.
CRP Recommendation: There is insufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the case is closed without prejudice.

Page 30 of 37

Case 21-0155 B. Pharmacist in charge (PIC) allegedly:
• Failed in the provision of pharmacy services.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• 201 KAR 2:205 Section 2 (3)(b) – the pharmacist in charge shall be responsible for
provision of pharmacy service.
CRP Recommendation: There is insufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the case is closed without prejudice.
Case 21-0155 C. Pharmacist allegedly:
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct by divulging or revealing patient
information to an unauthorized person.
• Dispensed a prescription to one patient that belonged to another patient. The patient
received amphetamine salts 30mg instead of buprenorphine/naloxone 8mg/2mg.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• KRS 315.121 (1)(b) – divulging or revealing to unauthorized persons patient information
or the nature of professional services rendered without the patient's express consent or
without order or direction of a court.
CRP Recommendation: There is insufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the case is closed without prejudice.
Case 21-0155 D. Pharmacy technician allegedly:
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct by divulging or revealing patient
information to an unauthorized person.
• Dispensed a prescription to one patient that belonged to another patient. The patient
received amphetamine salts 30mg instead of buprenorphine/naloxone 8mg/2mg.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• KRS 315.121 (1)(b) – divulging or revealing to unauthorized persons patient information
or the nature of professional services rendered without the patient's express consent or
without order or direction of a court.
CRP Recommendation: There is insufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the case is closed without prejudice.
Case 21-0157 A. Non-resident pharmacy permit holder allegedly:
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct by failing to timely transfer a
prescription resulting in patient doing without medication, clopidogrel, for 2 days.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• KRS 315.121(1)(a) – unprofessional or unethical conduct.
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CRP Recommendation: There is insufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the case is closed without prejudice upon issuance of a Letter of Concern.
Case 21-0157 B. Non-resident pharmacy pharmacist-in-charge (PIC) allegedly:
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct that substantially departs from
accepted standards of pharmacy practice ordinarily exercised by a pharmacist or
pharmacy intern, with or without established proof of actual injury; and
• Failed in the provision of pharmacy services by failing to timely transfer a
prescription resulting in patient doing without medication, clopidogrel, for 2 days.
Alleged Violations of Law:
• KRS 315.121(2)(d) – engaging in conduct likely to deceive, defraud, or harm the
public, demonstrating a willful or careless disregard for the health, welfare, or safety
of a patient, or engaging in conduct which substantially departs from accepted
standards of pharmacy practice ordinarily exercised by a pharmacist, with or without
established proof of actual injury; and
• 201 KAR 2:205 Section 2(3)(b) – PIC responsible for the provision of pharmacy
services.
CRP Recommendation: There is insufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the case is closed without prejudice upon issuance of a Letter of Concern.
Case 21-0158 A. Pharmacy permit holder allegedly:
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct. Pharmacy failed to obtain medication
for a patient.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• KRS 315.121 (1) (a) – Unprofessional or unethical conduct.
CRP Recommendation: There is insufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the case is closed without prejudice.
Case 21-0158 B. Pharmacist in charge allegedly:
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct by failing to obtain medication for a
patient.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• KRS 315.121(2)(d) - Engaging in conduct likely to deceive, defraud, or harm the public,
demonstrating a willful or careless disregard for the health, welfare, or safety of a
patient, or engaging in conduct which substantially departs from accepted standards of
pharmacy practice ordinarily exercised by a pharmacist or pharmacy intern, with or
without established proof of actual injury.
CRP Recommendation: There is insufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the case is closed without prejudice.
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Case 21-0160 A. Pharmacy permit holder allegedly:
• Engaged in unethical or unprofessional conduct; and
• Allowed a pharmacy technician to perform a COVID-19 test without proper training or
credentials.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• KRS 315.121 (1)(a) – unprofessional or unethical conduct
CRP Recommendation: There is sufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the Executive Director is directed to attempt resolution through an Agreed Order
and/or, if unsuccessful, to proceed with either an Administrative Conference, if requested, or
the issuance of a Formal Complaint and Notice of Hearing. Standard terms and $1,000
administrative fine, approved corrective action plan developed by permit holder and current
PIC [implemented within three months] to provide adequate pharmacist staffing for
pharmacy technician supervision in all aspects of pharmacy workflow.
Case 21-0160 B. Pharmacist in charge (PIC) allegedly:
• Failed in the provision of pharmacy services; and
• Serves as the lab director for Clinical Laboratory Improvement Amendments (CLIA)
waived tests, including COVID-19 testing, without proper training.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• 201 KAR 2:205 Section 2 (3)(b) – pharmacist in charge is responsible for the provision of
pharmacy services.
CRP Recommendation: There is sufficient evidence of a violation, however, the penalty shall
be the issuance of a Letter of Reprimand.
Case 21-0160 C. Pharmacy technician allegedly:
• Engaged in conduct likely to deceive, defraud, or harm the public, demonstrating a
willful or careless disregard for the health, welfare, or safety of a patient, with or
without established proof of actual injury;
• Performed a COVID-19 test without proper training;
• Engaged in unethical or unprofessional conduct; and
• Performed a COVID-19 test under someone else’s login, thus falsifying records as it
appears that someone else performed the testing.
Alleged Violations of Law:
• KRS 315.121 (2)(d) – engaging in conduct likely to deceive, defraud, or harm the public,
demonstrating a willful or careless disregard for the health, welfare, or safety of a
patient, with or without established proof of actual injury; and
• KRS 315.121 (1)(a) – unprofessional or unethical conduct.
CRP Recommendation: There is sufficient evidence of a violation, however, the penalty shall
be the issuance of a Letter of Reprimand.
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Case 21-0161 A, E and G. Pharmacy permit holder allegedly:
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct by allowing confidential patient
information to be revealed to an unauthorized person.
• Engaged in or aiding and abetting an individual to assist in the practice of pharmacy
without a pharmacy technician registration.
Alleged Violations of Law:
• KRS 315.121 (1)(a) – general unprofessional or unethical conduct; and
• KRS 315.121 (1)(g) – aiding and abetting an individual to assist in the practice of
pharmacy without a license.
Pharmacy permit holder allegedly:
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct by allowing confidential patient
information to be revealed to an unauthorized person.
• Engaged in or aiding and abetting an individual to assist in the practice of pharmacy
without a pharmacy technician registration.
Alleged Violations of Law:
• KRS 315.121 (1)(a) – general unprofessional or unethical conduct; and
• KRS 315.121 (1)(g) – aiding and abetting an individual to assist in the practice of
pharmacy without a license.
Pharmacy permit holder allegedly:
• Engaged in or aiding and abetting an individual to assist in the practice of pharmacy
without a pharmacy technician registration.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• KRS 315.121 (1)(g) – aiding and abetting an individual to assist in the practice of
pharmacy without a license.
CRP Recommendation: There is sufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the Executive Director is directed to attempt resolution through an Agreed Order
and/or, if unsuccessful, to proceed with either an Administrative Conference, if requested, or
the issuance of a Formal Complaint and Notice of Hearing. Standard terms and $1,000
administrative fine, approved corrective action plan developed by permit holder and current
PIC [implemented within 30 days of signed Agreed Order] to provide re-training of entire staff
on HIPAA.
Case 21-0161 B. Pharmacist in charge (PIC) allegedly:
• Failed to provide proper supervision of pharmacy technicians assisting in the practice of
pharmacy.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• KRS 315.020 (4)(a) – allowance for pharmacy technicians to assist in practice of
pharmacy under supervision of a pharmacist.
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CRP Recommendation: There is insufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the case is closed without prejudice upon issuance of a Letter of Concern.
Case 21-0161 C. Pharmacy technician allegedly:
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct by divulging or revealing to an
unauthorized person patient information without the patients’ express consent.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• KRS 315.121 (2)(b) – unprofessional or unethical conduct for violating confidentiality.
CRP Recommendation: There is sufficient evidence of a violation, however, the penalty shall
be the issuance of a Letter of Reprimand.
Case 21-0161 D. Pharmacy technician allegedly:
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct by divulging or revealing to an
unauthorized person patient information and the nature of professional services
rendered without the patients’ express consent.
• Failed to register as a pharmacy technician while assisting in the practice of pharmacy.
Alleged Violations of Law:
• KRS 315.121 (2)(b) – unprofessional or unethical conduct for violating confidentiality;
and
• KRS 315.135 (1) – a person shall not assist in the practice of pharmacy unless duly
registered as a pharmacy technician.
CRP Recommendation: There is sufficient evidence of a violation, however, the penalty shall
be the issuance of a Letter of Reprimand.
Case 21-0161 F. Pharmacist in charge (PIC) allegedly:
• Failed to provide proper supervision of pharmacy technicians assisting in the practice of
pharmacy.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• KRS 315.020 (4)(a) – allowance for pharmacy technicians to assist in practice of
pharmacy under supervision of a pharmacist.
CRP Recommendation: There is insufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the case is closed without prejudice upon issuance of a Letter of Concern.
Case 21-0162 A. Pharmacy permit holder allegedly:
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct by failing to dispense the full
quantity of medication prescribed based on drug cost and reimbursement rate.
Alleged Violation of Law:
• KRS 315.121 (1)(a) – unprofessional or unethical conduct.
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CRP Recommendation: There is insufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the case is closed without prejudice.
Case 21-0162 B. Pharmacist-in-charge (PIC) allegedly:
• Failed in the provision of pharmacy services.
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct by refusing to dispense the full
quantity of medication prescribed based on drug cost and reimbursement rate.
Alleged Violations of Law:
• 201 KAR 2:205 Section 2(3)(b) – PIC responsible for provision of pharmacy services; and
• KRS 315.121 (2)(d) – engaging in conduct likely to deceive, defraud, or harm the public,
with or without established proof of actual injury.
CRP Recommendation: There is insufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the case is closed without prejudice.
Case 21-0167. Pharmacy technician allegedly:
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct;
• Violated KRS 218A.1404 (1) and (2), KRS 218A.1412 (1)(a), and KRS 218A.1421 (2)(a);
• Was arrested and charged with trafficking marijuana and cocaine and possession of drug
paraphernalia.
Alleged Violations of Law:
• KRS 315.121 (1)(a)—unprofessional or unethical conduct, and
• KRS 315.121 (1)(h)—being found by the board to be in violation of any provision of this
chapter, KRS Chapter 217, KRS Chapter 218A, or the administrative regulations
promulgated pursuant to these chapters by violating KRS 218A.1404 (1) and (2), KRS
218A.1412 (1)(a), and KRS 218A.1421 (2)(a).
CRP Recommendation: There is sufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the Executive Director is directed to attempt resolution through an Agreed Order
and/or, if unsuccessful, to proceed with either an Administrative Conference, if requested, or
the issuance of a Formal Complaint and Notice of Hearing. Standard terms and revocation
with an emergency suspension of registration and filing of complaint with the Attorney
General.
Case 21-0179. Pharmacy technician allegedly:
• Engaged in unprofessional or unethical conduct by failing to surrender drugs
obtained at unauthorized location upon request from Board inspector; and
• Stored drugs at residence for months without being authorized to possess such drugs.
Alleged Violations of Law:
• KRS 315.121 (1)(a) – unprofessional or unethical conduct; and
• KRS 217.182 – unauthorized possession of legend drugs.
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CRP Recommendation: There is sufficient evidence of a violation to warrant disciplinary
action and the Executive Director is directed to attempt resolution through an Agreed Order
and/or, if unsuccessful, to proceed with either an Administrative Conference, if requested, or
the issuance of a Formal Complaint and Notice of Hearing. Standard terms and revocation. If
Agreed Order is not signed within 30 days, a complaint will be filed with the Attorney
General.
Larry Hadley moved to adjourn. Jill Rhodes seconded, and the motion passed unanimously. Jill
Rhodes adjourned the meeting at 1:55 p.m.
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